I. & H. BROWN LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

SBØØØØ\$Ø
SCT 17/03/2022 #7
COMPANIES HOUSE

COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors J S Brown

R M Brown D H Brown D A Brown A Miller A S Kenwell P Andrews

(Appointed 1 December 2021)

Secretary

L M Campbell

Company number

SC040891

Registered office

PO Box 51 Dunkeld Road

Perth PH1 3YD

Auditor

Azets Audit Services

Titanium 1
Kings Inch Place
Renfrew
Renfrewshire
United Kingdom

PA4 8WF

Solicitors

Shepherd and Wedderburn LLP

1 West Regent Street

Glasgow United Kingdom G2 1RW

J R Stevenson & Marshall

41 East Port Dunfermline

Fife

United Kingdom KY12 7LG

CONTENTS

	Page
Strategic report	1 - 4
Directors' report	5 - 7
Directors' responsibilities statement	8
Independent auditor's report	9 - 11
Group income statement	12
Group statement of comprehensive income	13
Group statement of financial position	14
Company statement of financial position	15 - 16
Group statement of changes in equity	17
Company statement of changes in equity	18
Group statement of cash flows	19 -
Notes to the financial statements	20 - 43

STRATEGIC REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

The directors present the strategic report for the period ended 29 August 2021.

Fair review of the business

The principal activities of the group consist of Civil Engineering and Remediation, Energy, Property, Development, Plant Hire, Farming and Estate Management.

The directors monitor turnover, pre-tax profit and working capital as their key performance indicators, as well as other measures to assess progress on contracts and developments. Turnover increased to £79,848,424 (52 weeks ended 30 August 2020 – £48,995,639). The business generated a pre-tax profit of £3,107,178 (52 weeks ended 30 August 2020 – £1,935,723).

Our civil engineering projects in Scotland and England have generally performed well.

Current workload in Scotland and England is profitable and progressing satisfactorily. Our order book is healthy in scale and nature. Strong management and an excellent reporting and control environment remain essential.

The group continues to engage in property development and currently visualises a strong sales pattern over the next few years to major house builders from a land bank with planning support for over 3,000 homes. Projects in Fife, Dundee, Perth and Falkirk have progressed with sales of sites in Dundee and Perthshire and offers invited for our Banknock site.

The group's Slievenahanaghan wind farm in Northern Ireland continues to produce energy.

The property business, Breckenridge Estates Rental Limited, continued to trade profitably. Its residential assets were transferred to the parent company at the year end as a means of streamlining the business. Breckenridge Lettings Limited is continuing to expand and has returned an excellent profit.

The group's working capital position is satisfactory with net current assets of £20,060,379 (30 August 2020 – £19,148,298) and this position endures in the new financial period.

I & H Brown continues to show its appreciation of our NHS by donating to NHS Charities Together. We are gifting the earnings from one of our excavators working at Winchburgh. The excavator, named "The Lockdown Ranger" by a local school pupil is digging deep for our health service. Our donation is being matched by our client, Winchburgh Developments.

In conclusion, we expect our market place to continue to be challenging. The volume of civil engineering work is expected to remain buoyant despite carrying out less work in England. We continue to make good progress in our development division where we anticipate an increasing number of projects coming to fruition. Finally, our business remains diversified and financially robust; this has proved to be helpful in recent years. Resilience during the COVID-19 pandemic is important.

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

Principal risks and uncertainties

The group's principal financial instruments comprise cash, cash equivalents and loans. Other financial assets and liabilities, such as trade creditors and trade debtors, arise directly from the group's operating activities.

The main risks associated with the group's financial assets and liabilities are set out below.

Interest rate risk

The group invests surplus cash in a floating rate interest yielding bank deposit account and has access to a floating rate interest bearing overdraft facility. Term loans are entered into at floating interest rates. The group's interest income and expenses are therefore affected by movements in interest rates.

Credit risk

The group has external debtors; however, the group undertakes assessments of its customers in order to ensure that credit is not extended where there is a likelihood of default.

Liquidity risk

The group aims to mitigate liquidity risk by managing cash generated by its operations.

Cash flow risk

Cash flow risk is the risk of exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability. The group manages this risk, where significant, by use of cash flow forecasting and negotiating regular stage payment arrangements with customers.

Foreign currency risk

The group does not have any foreign currency transactions and therefore is not exposed to any foreign currency risk.

Brexit risk

The group does not trade outside the UK, but is exposed to Brexit related risk in its supply chain, both downwards in respect of the procurement of goods, services and labour and upwards in respect the group's customers' investment decisions. The group continues to monitor these risks and to take appropriate action to mitigate their effects on its business.

COVID-19 risk

In the past two years, the outbreak of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) has detrimentally impacted both the global and UK economies. The group's civil engineering operations were paused in March 2020 in line with the COVID-19 lockdown restrictions implemented by the UK and Scottish Governments. However, by implementing COVID-19 Safe Operating Procedures, developed collaboratively by the construction industry and the UK and Scottish Governments, all sites resumed operations during May and June 2020 and continue to work at full operational capacity. Consequently, the directors have concluded that COVID-19 will have a minimal impact on the group's ability to remain operational in the long term, yet they remain alert to the risk of operations being disrupted by an outbreak at one of our offices or sites or by recurrent local, or even national, lockdowns. The group continues to monitor the complex risks posed by COVID-19 to its business and to take appropriate action to mitigate their effects.

Future Developments

The directors anticipate no changes to the group's principal activities.

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

Section 172 statement

Stakeholder engagement

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires a director of a group to act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would most likely promote the success of the group for the benefit of its members as a whole. The directors of the group recognise the importance of, and the effect that different groups of stakeholders have, on the group and its success. As a result, the directors are careful to consider the effects of the group's actions on different groups of stakeholders when they make decisions. The directors primarily recognise the following groups of stakeholders when making decisions:

Customers

The directors recognise that customer relationships are critical to the success of the group. As the nature of the group's business often involves multi-year projects with significant capital investment, it is of paramount importance that the group maintains a positive relationship with its customers in order to win repeat business and maintain its highly regarded reputation within the civil engineering industry.

The group seeks to foster and maintain a positive working relationship with its customers through the implementation of high quality cost effective engineering solutions. These solutions aim to offer best cost to the customer, whilst delivering a quality end product. The directors along with representatives of the group meet regularly with customer representatives to assess the effectiveness of these solutions.

The group also seeks to improve its technological skills and knowledge for the benefit of its customers. This involves the group conducting regular research and development (R&D) assignments in order to identify novel engineering solutions to unique challenges that are encountered during projects. This process allows the group to better serve the needs of its customers thereby improving the customer's experience. The directors receive regular reports and updates on the status and outcomes of ongoing R&D assignments so that they are able to better direct the group's current and future R&D activities.

Suppliers

The directors recognise that the group's suppliers also play an important role in the success of the group. Receiving quality products and services in a timely, efficient and cost effective manner from suppliers has a positive effect on the group's delivery of projects and its ability to control costs.

The directors along with representatives of the group maintain strong relationships with key suppliers and regularly review their performance to better direct key purchasing decisions. These key purchasing decisions have resulted in the group being able to reduce its cost base on various projects which directly contributes to the success of the group.

Employees

The directors recognise that the group's employees are crucial to the long-term success of the group. It is important that the group maintains and improves upon the skill base of its employees as this will directly affect the day to day performance of the group. A properly trained workforce will enable the group to deliver high quality projects whilst making efficient use of its resources. The group seeks to identify the training needs of its employees through the use of regularly scheduled performance appraisals combined with budgeting for training needs on an annual basis.

The directors also want to encourage employee participation in the business as this leads to better employee retention which inevitably leads to a more skilled workforce which is better able to meet the ongoing requirements of the business. In order to promote employee participation, the directors positively encourage employees to suggest improvements to standard operating procedures that will be of benefit to the group. It is the directors' intention that this collaborative approach drives employee involvement and retention thereby improving the performance of the group.

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

Communities

The group's operations are geographically dispersed, yet the directors recognise that each project and each group office is located within a local community. It is therefore important for the group to engage with local community representatives so as to maximise any potential positive outcomes and minimise any negative effects of the group's operations on these local communities. The directors believe that this engagement with local communities will help to improve awareness of the group's activities and its reputation, thereby improving the group's long-term prospects.

Environment

The directors recognise that the group must act in an environmentally responsible manner in all its business activities in order to protect and improve the reputation of the group. The group seeks to reduce its energy usage through technological improvements to reduce energy consumption in its operations. The group closely monitors the environmental impact of all its projects, so as to ensure an environmentally positive outcome. The directors believe that this proactive approach will mitigate the effect of the group's operations on the natural environment, thereby improving its reputation and long-term prospects.

Principal decisions

The directors consider principal decisions to be those decisions which are of key strategic importance to the group and affect one or more groups of stakeholders. The directors recognise that considering the impact on stakeholders in its decisions is key to the success of the group. Some examples of such principal decisions are the investment in its English civil engineering operations to ensure a strong geographic coverage for the group, the continued re-investment in the group's own fleet of earth moving heavy plant to win key contracts in Scotland and the ever diversifying nature of the business to create a strong and resilient balance sheet.

On behalf of the board

J S Brown Director

26 February 2022

DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the 52 week period ended 29 August 2021.

Certain information including the review of business and financial risks is not shown in the Directors' Report because it is shown in the strategic report instead under S414C (11).

Principal activities

The principal activities of the company and group consist of Civil Engineering and Remediation, Energy, Property, Development, Plant Hire, Farming and Estate Management.

Results and dividends

The results for the period are set out on page 12.

Ordinary dividends were paid amounting to £505,400 (2020 - £nil). The directors do not recommend payment of a further dividend.

Directors

The directors who held office during the period and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as follows:

J S Brown

J H Brown

(Deceased 21 March 2021)

R M Brown

D H Brown

D A Brown

A Miller

A S Kenwell

R M Entwistle

(Retired 30 June 2021)

P Andrews

(Appointed 1 December 2021)

Auditor

Azets Audit Services were appointed as auditor to the group during the period and in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution proposing that they be re-appointed will be put to a General Meeting.

Energy and carbon report

The SECR data requirements for unquoted 'large' Companies have been met and the energy consumption and emissions are reported below. This includes UK consumption of electricity, gas, and transport fuels where the group is responsible for the fuels. Scope 2 emissions from purchased electricity have been calculated using the location based approach only.

	2021	2020
Energy consumption	kWh	kWh
Aggregate of energy consumption in the year		
- Gas combustion	44,978	52,787
- Electricity purchased	221,649	212,427
- Fuel consumed for transport	59,176,962	35,426,172
- Other	220,547	248,570
	59,664,136	35,939,956
		=====

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

	2021	2020
Emissions of CO2 equivalent	metric tonnes	metric tonnes
Scope 1 - direct emissions		
- Gas combustion	35.00	36.00
- Fuel consumed for owned transport	7,743.00	4,278.00
	7,778.00	4,314.00
Scope 2 - indirect emissions		
- Electricity purchased	74.00	66.00
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions		
- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the group	432.00	82.00
Total gross emissions	8,284.00	4,462.00
	=	
Intensity ratio		
CO2e per £million	103.75	91.07

Quantification and reporting methodology

The group has followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. The group has also used the GHG Reporting Protocol – Corporate Standard and has used the 2020 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions (scope 1, 2 and 3) per annual sales revenue in tonnes CO2e per £million.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

When I. & H. Brown first developed its Carbon management strategy back in 2008-09, it recognised that its emissions were going to be dependent upon operational activities, such as plant use on site, so that any progress would need to be explained in the context of business operations and growth.

Rather than absolute emissions, I. & H. Brown's ambition is to achieve relative reductions against identified business metrics in conjunction with a policy of replacing site plant and road vehicles with new fuel-efficient vehicles.

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor of the group and company is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor of the group and company is aware of that information.

Going concern

The group has a satisfactory level of financial resources together with a solid base of existing customers, and expertise in its field of operations. As a consequence the directors believe that the group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the current uncertain economic outlook.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and so continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

After investigation the directors have concluded that the Covid 19 situation will not adversely affect the ability of the group to continue trading and fulfil the requirements of the going concern accounting policy.

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

On behalf of the board

J S Brown Director

26 February 2022

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company, and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- · make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group's and company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF I. & H. BROWN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of I. & H. Brown Limited (the 'parent company') and its subsidiaries (the 'group') for the 52 week period ended 29 August 2021 which comprise the group income statement, the group statement of comprehensive income, the group statement of financial position, the company statement of financial position, the group statement of changes in equity, the group statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent company's affairs as at 29 August 2021 and of the group's profit for the period then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
 and
- · have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements* section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED) TO THE MEMBERS OF I. & H. BROWN LIMITED

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial period for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
- the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- · certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- · we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE MEMBERS OF I. & H. BROWN LIMITED

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above and on the Financial Reporting Council's website, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

We obtain and update our understanding of the entity, its activities, its control environment, and likely future developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory framework applicable and how the entity is complying with that framework. Based on this understanding, we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. This includes consideration of the risk of acts by the entity that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, we designed procedures which included:

- Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and claims as well as actual, suspected and alleged fraud;
- Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;
- Assessing the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations considered to have a direct material effect on the financial statements or the operations of the entity through enquiry and inspection;
- Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with applicable laws and regulations;
- Performing audit work over the risk of management bias and override of controls, including testing of
 journal entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business rationale of
 significant transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for
 indicators of potential bias.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Bernadette Higgins (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Azets Audit Services

Chartered Accountants Statutory Auditor

Date: 4 Mach 2022

Titanium 1
Kings Inch Place
Renfrew
Renfrewshire
United Kingdom
PA4 8WF

GROUP INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

	Notes	Period ended 29 August 2021 £	Period ended 30 August 2020 £
Turnover Cost of sales	3	79,848,424 (74,492,789)	48,995,639 (45,869,019)
Gross profit		5,355,635	3,126,620
Administrative expenses Other operating income		(2,330,067) 124,701	(2,455,846) 909,632
Operating profit	4	3,150,269	1,580,406
Other interest receivable and similar income Other interest payable and similar expenses Profit on disposal of land and buildings Profit on disposal of investments Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment properties Unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluation of investments Income from investments	8	753 (101,218) - - 22,000 33,723 1,651	3,347 (145,943) 275,101 189,462 37,500 (7,750) 3,600
Profit before taxation		3,107,178	1,935,723
Tax on profit	9	(601,656)	(288,466)
Profit for the financial period	-27	2,505,522 =====	1,647,257

GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

	Period	Period
	ended	ended
	29 August	30 August
	2021	2020
	£	3
Profit for the period	2,505,522	1,647,257
Other comprehensive income	-	-
		
Total comprehensive income for the period	2,505,522	1,647,257
	=	

Total comprehensive income for the period is all attributable to the owners of the parent company.

GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 29 AUGUST 2021

Notes	£	£	£	£
4.4				
11		12,308,481		12,513,036
12		21,288,000		21,233,000
		33,596,481		33,746,036
16	19,003,149		18,164,332	
17	19,679,678		18,648,679	
18	435,748		402,023	
	7,608,812		4,131,346	
	46,727,387		41,346,380	
19	(26,667,008)		(22,198,082)	
		20,060,379		19,148,298
		53,656,860		52,894,334
20		(575 563)		(2,463,570
20		(373,363)		(2,405,570
23	1,057,773		1,009,018	
24	1,030,006		428,350	
		(2,087,779)		(1,437,368
		50,993,518		48,993,396
26		72,200		72,200
27		147,349		147,349
27		2,977,381		2,955,381
27		2,000		2,000
27		47,794,588		45,816,466
		50,993,518		48,993,396
	19 20 23 24 26 27 27 27	17	16	16

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 26 February 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

J S Brown Director

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 29 AUGUST 2021

		20	021	20)20
	Notes	£	£	£	£
Fixed assets					
Tangible assets	11		12,292,469		12,429,880
Investment properties	12		21,288,000		8,483,000
Investments	13		1,322,343		1,322,343
			34,902,812		22,235,223
Current assets					
Stocks	16	19,084,703		18,245,886	
Debtors	17	19,648,505		26,639,706	
Investments	18	434,773		402,023	
Cash at bank and in hand		7,436,869		4,040,193	
		46,604,850		49,327,808	
Creditors: amounts falling due within					
one year	19	(29,710,900)		(22,101,594)	
Net current assets			16,893,950		27,226,214
Total assets less current liabilities			51,796,762		49,461,437
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year	20		(570,467)		(468,264
Provisions for liabilities					
Provisions	23	1,057,773		1,009,018	
Deferred tax liability	24	1,029,471		398,530	
			(2,087,244)		(1,407,548
Net assets			49,139,051		47,585,625
Capital and reserves					
Called up share capital	26		72,200		72,200
Share premium account	27		147,349		147,349
Non-distributable reserve	27		2,630,951		2,608,951
Capital redemption reserve	27		2,000		2,000
Profit and loss reserves	27		46,286,551		44,755,125
Total equity			49,139,051		47,585,625
-					

As permitted by S408 Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own profit and loss account and related notes. The company's profit for the period was £2,058,826 (52 week period to 30 August 2020 - £1,261,702).

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

AS AT 29 AUGUST 2021

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 26 February 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

J S Brown Director

Company Registration No. SC040891

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

Notes	capital	account	distributable		loss	
Notes		account	reserve	reserve	reserves	
110163	£	£	£	£	£	£
	72,200	147,349	2,917,881	2,000	44,206,709	47,346,139
			37,500	-	1,609,757	1,647,257
	72,200	147,349	2,955,381	2,000	45,816,466	48,993,396
10	-	-	22,000		2,483,522 (505,400)	2,505,522 (505,400)
	72,200	147,349	2,977,381	2,000	47,794,588	50,993,518
	10	72,200	72,200 147,349	72,200 147,349 2,955,381 22,000 10	37,500 - 72,200 147,349 2,955,381 2,000 22,000 - 10	37,500 - 1,609,757 72,200 147,349 2,955,381 2,000 45,816,466 22,000 - 2,483,522 10 (505,400)

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

		Share	Share	Non-	Capital	Profit and	Total
		capital	premium account	distributable reserve	redemption reserve	loss reserves	
	Notes	£	£	£	£	£	£
Balance at 1 September 2019		72,200	147,349	2,519,904	2,000	43,582,470	46,323,923
Period ended 30 August 2020: Profit and total comprehensive income for the period		-		89,047	-	1,172,655	1,261,702
Balance at 30 August 2020		72,200	147,349	2,608,951	2,000	44,755,125	47,585,625
Period ended 29 August 2021: Profit and total comprehensive income for the period Dividends	10	-	-	22,000	-	2,036,826 (505,400)	2,058,826 (505,400)
Balance at 29 August 2021		72,200	147,349	2,630,951	2,000	46,286,551	49,139,051

GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

	20	21	20	20
Not	tes £	3	£	£
Cash flows from operating activities				
Cash generated from operations 3	4 .	7,215,403		7,509,161
Investing activities				
Interest received	753		3,347	
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets				
and unlisted investments	(39,909)		(1,296,335)	
Receipts from sales of tangible fixed assets	184,345		491,684	
Purchase of investments held as liquid resources	(2)		-	
Receipts from sale of investments held as liquid				
resources	-		845,337	
Income from investments	1,651		3,600	
Net cash generated from investing				
activities		146,838		47,633
Financing activities				
Repayments of capital element of finance leases	(1,032,564)		(870,366)	
Equity dividends paid	(505,400)		-	
Interest paid	(60,305)		(117,274)	
Interest element of finance lease repayments	(40,913)		(28,669)	
Receipts from new long-term borrowings	-		2,807	
Repayments of long-term borrowings	(2,245,593)		(428,125)	
Net cash used in financing activities		(3,884,775)		(1,441,627)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		3,477,466		6,115,167
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	d	4,131,346		(1,983,821)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period		7,608,812		4,131,346
·				

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies

Company information

I. & H. Brown Limited ("the company") is a private company limited by shares domiciled and incorporated in Scotland. The registered office is PO Box 51, Dunkeld Road, Perth, Perthshire, PH1 3YD.

The group consists of I. & H. Brown Limited and all of its subsidiaries, details of which are included within note 14.

1.1 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" ("FRS 102") and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of freehold properties and to include investment properties and certain financial instruments at fair value. Accounting policies are consistent across all subsidiaries within the group and all entities have coterminous financial periods. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

1.2 Business combinations

In the parent company financial statements, the cost of a business combination is the fair value at the acquisition date of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed, plus costs directly attributable to the business combination. The excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is recognised as goodwill. The cost of the combination includes the estimated amount of contingent consideration that is probable and can be measured reliably, and is adjusted for changes in contingent consideration after the acquisition date. Provisional fair values recognised for business combinations in previous periods are adjusted retrospectively for final fair values determined in the 12 months following the acquisition date. Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost less impairment.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the value of assets (other than goodwill) and liabilities recognised in a business combination accounted for using the purchase method and the amounts that can be deducted or assessed for tax, considering the manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability is expected to be recovered or settled. The deferred tax recognised is adjusted against goodwill or negative goodwill.

1.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated group financial statements consist of the financial statements of the parent company I. & H. Brown Limited together with all entities controlled by the parent company (its subsidiaries) for the 52 week period to 29 August 2021.

All financial statements are made up to 29 August 2021. The company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has presented no income statement. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by other members of the group.

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Subsidiaries are consolidated in the group's financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies

(Continued)

1.4 Going concern

The group has a satisfactory level of financial resources together with a solid base of existing customers, and expertise in its field of operations. As a consequence the directors believe that the group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the current uncertain economic outlook.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and so continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

After investigation the directors have concluded that the Covid 19 situation will not adversely affect the ability of the group to continue trading and fulfil the requirements of the going concern accounting policy.

1.5 Reporting period

These financial statements cover a 52 week period from 31 August 2020 to 29 August 2021. The normal accounting period comprises 52 weeks ending on the Sunday nearest 31 August. Periodically a 53 week period is necessary to realign the accounting period with the calendar.

1.6 Turnover

Turnover is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, and is shown net of VAT and other sales related taxes. The fair value of consideration takes into account trade discounts, settlement discounts and volume rebates.

When cash inflows are deferred and represent a financing arrangement, the fair value of the consideration is the present value of the future receipts. The difference between the fair value of the consideration and the nominal amount received is recognised as interest income.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer (usually on dispatch of the goods), the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

In respect of speculative house building, revenue and profit is recognised on the sale of houses when, subject to the stage of completion of the development, the sales have been legally completed and after allocating total foreseen construction and site development costs to each unit.

1.7 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Wind turbines 20 years

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies

(Continued)

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Certain of the group's freehold properties are not depreciated. In the opinion of the directors, given that residual values on freehold buildings are expected to be at least equal to their original cost, any annual depreciation charge would not materially impact the results for the period.

Any premium paid over and above the agricultural value for land and associated buildings with mineral extraction, wind farming or property development potential, is written off where the necessary consents to exploit this potential have not been secured.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

1.8 Investment properties

Certain of the group's properties are held for long term investment. Investment properties are recognised on the basis of fair value of the owner's interest, based on market value, as determined by a professionally qualified, independent valuer or by the net present value of future rental income received. The surplus or deficit on revaluation is recognised in the income statement account accumulated in a non-distributable reserve. Where the deficit is below original cost, or its reversal on an individual investment property is expected to be permanent, it is recognised in the profit and loss reserve.

1.9 Fixed asset investments

Equity investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss, except for those equity investments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably, which are recognised at cost less impairment until a reliable measure of fair value becomes available.

In the parent company financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

1.10 Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting period end date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method is tested for impairment as a single asset. Any goodwill included in the carrying amount of the investment is not tested separately for impairment.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies

(Continued)

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

1.11 Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition, and net realisable value as follows:

Development land: purchase cost plus attributable expenses and development costs.

Spares and fuel: purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis.

Farm stock: cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable overheads based on a normal level of activity.

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Costs incurred in relation to development activities are included in the statement of financial position in work in progress in so far as there is reasonable certainty over the outcome of the project. Otherwise, a provision is made against the recoverability of these costs.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of stocks over its estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses are also recognised in profit or loss.

1.12 Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting end date. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract turnover, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred where it is probable that they will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. When costs incurred in securing a contract are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, they are not included in contract costs if the contract is obtained in a subsequent period.

The company shall determine the stage of completion of a transaction or contract through performing surveys of the work performed to date.

1.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies

(Continued)

1.14 Financial instruments

The group has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments' and Section 12 'Other Financial Instruments Issues' of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the group's statement of financial position when the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets, including investments in equity instruments which are not subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss, except that investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost less impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or when the group transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies

(Continued)

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the group's contractual obligations expire or are discharged or cancelled.

1.15 Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs. Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion of the group.

1.16 Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting end date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if, and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies

(Continued)

1.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting end date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation is recognised at present value. When a provision is measured at present value, the unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

1.18 Employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee's services are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

1.19 Retirement benefits

The group operates two defined contribution pension schemes. Contributions are charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the schemes.

1.20 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessees. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at the lower of the asset's fair value at the date of inception and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The related liability is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements. The interest is charged to profit or loss so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals payable under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

1.21 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at the fair value of the asset received or receivable when there is reasonable assurance that the grant conditions will be met and the grants will be received.

A grant that specifies performance conditions is recognised in income when the performance conditions are met. Where a grant does not specify performance conditions it is recognised in income when the proceeds are received or receivable. A grant received before the recognition criteria are satisfied is recognised as a liability.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

1 Accounting policies

(Continued)

1.22 Current asset investments

Listed current investments are stated at market value, determined by their quoted share prices and volume of shares held by the group.

1.23 Debtors

Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment.

2 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the group's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future periods. The following are considered key estimates:

Long term contracts

The group's activities include long term contracts. These contracts require estimates to be made for contract costs and revenues, of which the expected outcome of long term contractual obligations can span more than one period. Management bases its judgements of contract costs and revenues on the latest available information which includes contract valuations. The amount of profit attributable to the stage of completion of a long term contract is recognised when the outcome of the contract can be foreseen with reasonable certainty. This stage of completion method places importance on accurate estimates of the extent of progress towards completion and may involve estimates on the scope of services required for fulfilling the contractual obligation. These significant estimates include total contract costs, total contract revenues, contract risks and other judgements. Such changes in estimates, may lead to an increase or decrease in revenues. Full provision is made for all known or expected losses on individual contracts once such losses are foreseen.

Development land

Judgement is required when determining the cost that is attributed to income realised on a sale of development land in the period. Costs attributed to a development land sale consist of both attributable costs incurred to the date of sale (work in progress) and a reasonable provision for future costs yet to be incurred in relation to the area of land sold, most notably Section 75 planning obligations.

Restoration and aftercare provisions

A provision is recognised when the group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provision is made for the restoration and aftercare obligations in respect of a landfill site and a wind farm site.

Investment properties' valuation

Certain of the group's properties are held for long term investment. Investment properties are recognised on the basis of fair value of the owner's interest, based on market value, as determined by a professionally qualified, independent valuer or by the net present value of future rental income received.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

3	Turnover and other revenue		
		Group 2021	Group 2020
		£	£
	Turnover analysed by class of business	70.047.400	40.004.004
	Civil engineering, plant hire and waste management	76,247,438	40,884,691
	Farming and estate management	774,565	559,660
	Rental income from investment property	1,453,217	1,279,281
	Property development	1,373,204	6,272,007
		79,848,424	48,995,639
	All turnover arises from activities in the United Kingdom.		
	Within the above, revenue of £75,716,013 (2020 - £40,332,182) was recog	nised from long terr	n contracts.
4	Operating profit		
		Group	Group
		2021	2020
	•	£	£
	Operating profit for the period is stated after charging/(crediting):		
	Government grants	-	(816,137)
	Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets	953,230	1,053,459
	Depreciation of tangible fixed assets held under finance leases	451,438	353,829
	Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets	(124,701)	(89,490)
	Sundry income	-	(4,005)
	Operating lease rentals - plant and machinery	43,684	37,984
	Operating lease rentals - land and buildings	74,611 	63,798 ————
5	Auditor's remuneration	Group	Group
		2021	2020
	Fees payable to the company's auditor:	£	£
	For audit services		
	Audit of the financial statements of the group and company	55,550	74,263
	For other services		
	Taxation compliance services	9,500	15,150
	All other non-audit services	3,316	3,233
		12,816	18,383

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

6 Employees

7

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the group during the period was:

was:	Group 2021 Number	Group 2020 Number
	144111001	
Management and administration	95	96
Drivers and operators	117	111
Total	212	207
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:		
	Group	Group
	2021	2020
	£	£
Wages and salaries	10,753,311	8,790,314
Social security costs	1,137,823	925,733
Pension costs	374,839	315,957
	12,265,973	10,032,004
Directors' remuneration		
	Group	Group
	2021	2020
	£	£
Remuneration for qualifying services	944,703	700,725
Company pension contributions to money purchase pension schemes	55,287	26,954
	999,990	727,679

The number of directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing in respect of qualifying services under money purchase schemes amounted to 3 (2020 - 3).

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid director:

	Group 2021 £	Group 2020 £
Remuneration for qualifying services Company pension contributions to money purchase pension schemes	199,491	155,857 8.628
Company pension contributions to money purchase pension schemes		=

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

_		 	
	Interest payable and similar expenses	_	_
		Group	Group
		2021	2020
	Interest on bank overdrafts and loans	£ 60,305	£ 117,274
	Interest on finance leases and hire purchase contracts	40,913	28,669
	interest of infance leases and thre purchase contracts	40,913	
	Total finance costs	101,218	145,943
	Taxation		
	TAXAUOTI	Group	Group
		2021	2020
		£	£
	Current tax		
	UK corporation tax on profits for the current period	-	46,036
	Adjustments in respect of prior periods	-	(257,808
			
	Total current tax		(211,772
	Deferred tax		
	Origination and reversal of timing differences	601,656	500,238
	Total tax charge	601,656	288,466
	Total tax shargs	====	====
	The estual charge for the period can be reconciled to the expected charge for	the period based	on the profit
	The actual charge for the period can be reconciled to the expected charge for or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:	the period based	on the profit
		Group	Group
		2021	2020
		£	£
	Profit before taxation	3,107,178	1,935,723
	Troit before taxation	====	=====
	Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.00% (2020: 19.00%)	590,364	367,787
	Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit	15,470	24,465
	rax election expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit		(137,204
	Tax effect of income not taxable in determining taxable profit	(10.403)	
	Tax effect of income not taxable in determining taxable profit Chargeable gains and revaluations	(10,403) -	•
	Chargeable gains and revaluations	(10,403) - -	158,014
	Chargeable gains and revaluations Effect of changes in tax rate	(10,403) - - -	158,014 1,796
	Chargeable gains and revaluations	(10,403) - - - (30,314)	158,014 1,796
	Chargeable gains and revaluations Effect of changes in tax rate Adjustment in respect of previous periods	- -	158,014 1,796
	Chargeable gains and revaluations Effect of changes in tax rate Adjustment in respect of previous periods Fixed assets differences	- - (30,314)	158,014 1,796
	Chargeable gains and revaluations Effect of changes in tax rate Adjustment in respect of previous periods Fixed assets differences Other tax adjustments, reliefs and transfers Exempt ABGH distributions Remeasurement of deferred tax for	(30,314) 6,649 (314)	158,014 1,796
	Chargeable gains and revaluations Effect of changes in tax rate Adjustment in respect of previous periods Fixed assets differences Other tax adjustments, reliefs and transfers Exempt ABGH distributions	(30,314) 6,649	158,014 1,796 (126,392 - - -
	Chargeable gains and revaluations Effect of changes in tax rate Adjustment in respect of previous periods Fixed assets differences Other tax adjustments, reliefs and transfers Exempt ABGH distributions Remeasurement of deferred tax for	(30,314) 6,649 (314)	158,014 1,796

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

10	Dividends					Company 2021	Company 2020
	Recognised as distributions to	o equity hold	ers:			2021 £	2020 £
	Final dividend of £3 per share Interim dividend of £4 per share					216,600 288,800	-
						505,400	-
11	Tangible fixed assets						
	Group	Land and buildings	Plant and machinery	Motor vehicles £	Wind turbines £	Leasehold improvements	Total £
	Cost or valuation	£	£	£	L	£	Z
	At 31 August 2020	6,162,330	17,955,939	2,495,212	1,891,006	18,797	28,523,284
	Additions	-	904,917	354,840	-	-	1,259,757
	Disposals	-	(652,792)	(284,087)	-	-	(936,879)
	At 29 August 2021	6,162,330	18,208,064	2,565,965	1,891,006	18,797	28,846,162
	Depreciation and impairment						
	At 31 August 2020	731,063	13,036,584	1,973,072	261,806	7,723	16,010,248
	Depreciation charged in the						
	period	6,000	1,054,322	256,716	85,698	1,932	1,404,668
	Eliminated in respect of disposals	-	(608,753)	(268,482)	-	-	(877,235)
	At 29 August 2021	737,063	13,482,153	1,961,306	347,504	9,655	16,537,681
	Carrying amount						
	At 29 August 2021	5,425,267	4,725,911	604,659	1,543,502	9,142	12,308,481
	At 30 August 2020	5,431,267	4,919,355	522,140	1,629,200	11,074	12,513,036

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

11	Tangible fixed assets					(Continued)
	Company	Land and buildings	Plant and machinery	Motor vehicles	Wind turbines	Total
		£	£	£	£	£
	Cost or valuation					
	At 31 August 2020	6,162,330	17,705,854	2,485,154	1,891,006	28,244,344
	Additions	-	947,573	354,840		1,302,413
	Disposals	-	(652,792)	(284,087)	-	(936,879)
	At 29 August 2021	6,162,330	18,000,635	2,555,907	1,891,006	28,609,878
	Depreciation and impairment					
	At 31 August 2020	731,063	12,851,377	1,970,218	261,806	15,814,464
	Depreciation charged in the period	6,000	1,033,782	254,700	85,698	1,380,180
	Eliminated in respect of disposals	-	(608,753)	(268,482)	-	(877,235)
	At 29 August 2021	737,063	13,276,406	1,956,436	347,504	16,317,409
	Carrying amount					
	At 29 August 2021	5,425,267	4,724,229	599,471	1,543,502	12,292,469
	At 30 August 2020	5,431,267	4,854,477	514,936	1,629,200	12,429,880
			=======================================			

The net carrying value of tangible fixed assets includes the following in respect of assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts:

,	Group 2021 £	Group 2020 £	Company 2021 £	Company 2020 £
Plant and machinery	2,152,702	1,895,280	2,152,702	1,895,280
Motor vehicles	27,204	34,595	22,016	27,391
	2,179,906	1,929,875	2,174,718	1,922,671
·				====

The group depreciation above includes an amount in respect of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts of £451,438 (2020 - £353,829). The company depreciation above includes an amount in respect of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts of £449,422 (2020 - £351,813).

The historical cost of freehold land and buildings included at valuation is £4,864,577 (2020 - £4,864,577).

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

12	Investment property	Group	Company
		2021	2021
		£	£
	Fair value		
	At 31 August 2020	21,233,000	8,483,000
	Additions through external acquisition	33,000	12,783,000
	Revaluation	22,000	22,000
	At 29 August 2021	21,288,000	21,288,000

All investment properties, with the exception of one, are included at valuation, with these being professionally valued at 27 August 2021 by an independent valuer, Smart & Co Surveyors, in accordance with the RICS Valuation - Global standards (July 2017) on the basis of fair value of the owner's interest. The valuation methodology used was that of sales prices of similar properties and local market evidence, adjusting for location, size and condition of the properties. The investment property portfolio is let where possible and as such is all held for use in operating leases.

Hartside Wood is included on the basis of the net present value of future rentals discounted at a market rate. As there is a long term lease agreement with known payments in regards to this property, it is viewed by the directors that the net present value is the more appropriate method of stating this property's fair value.

If investment properties were stated on a historical cost basis rather than a fair value basis, the amounts would have been included as follows:

			Group 2021 £	Group 2020 £	Company 2021 £	Company 2020 £
	Cost Accumulated depreciation		16,804,551	16,804,551	16,804,551 -	6,560,394
	Carrying amount		16,804,551	16,804,551	16,804,551	6,560,394
13	Fixed asset investments	Notes	Group 2021 £	Group 2020 £	Company 2021 £	Company 2020 £
	Investments in subsidiaries	14	-	-	1,322,343	1,322,343

14 Subsidiaries

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 29 August 2021 are as follows:

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

14	Subsidiaries				((Continued)
	Name of undertaking	Registered o	ffice		Class of shares held	% Held Direct
	Breckenridge Estates Limited	PO Box 51 Perthshire,	, Dunkeld Road PH1 3YD	d, Perth,	Ordinary	100
	Breckenridge Lettings Limited	Knoll Hous Surrey, GU	e, Knoll Road, 15 3SY	Camberley,	Ordinary	100
	Breckenridge Estates Rental Limited*	Knoll Hous Surrey, GU	e, Knoll Road, 15 3SY	Camberley,	Ordinary	100
	*Held by a subsidiary undertaking					
15	Financial instruments					
			Group 2021	Group 2020	Company 2021	Company 2020
			£	£	£	£
	Carrying amount of financial assets	;				
	Debt instruments measured at amortis Instruments measured at fair value thr		n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
	profit or loss	3	435,748	402,023	434,773	402,023

As permitted by the reduced disclosure framework within FRS 102, the company has taken advantage of the exemption from disclosing the carrying amount of certain classes of financial instruments, denoted by 'n/a' above.

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

16 Stocks

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

Stocks	Group 2021 £	Group 2020 £	Company 2021 £	Company 2020 £
Farm stock	238,562	219,131	238,562	219,131
Development land in progress	18,700,563	17,864,630	18,782,117	17,946,184
Spares and fuels	64,024	80,571	64,024	80,571
	19,003,149	18,164,332	19,084,703	18,245,886
				=====

During the period £1,558,879 (52 week period to 30 August 2020 - £6,400,483) was recognised as an expense through cost of sales.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

				*		
17	Debtors					
			Group	Group	Company	Company
			2021	2020	2021	2020
			£	£	£	£
	Trade debtors		1,267,651	2,935,182	1,228,441	2,897,097
	Gross amounts owed by contract custo	omers	8,904,536	7,308,456	8,904,536	7,308,456
	Due from related companies		2,248	18,210	2,248	18,210
	Corporation tax recoverable		•	211,772	· <u>-</u>	257,808
	Amounts owed by group undertakings		_	· <u>-</u>	22,237	8,010,881
	Other debtors		9,482,323	8,150,340	9,474,190	8,142,129
	Prepayments and accrued income		22,920	24,719	16,853	5,125
			19,679,678	18,648,679	19,648,505	26,639,706
			=			
	Retentions of £2,991,661 (2020 - £2, amounts recoverable on contracts.	885,756)	which are due	in more than o	one year, are ir	ncluded within
18	Current asset investments		_	_	_	_
			Group	Group	Company	Company
			2021	2020	2021	2020
			£	£	£	£
	Listed investments		77,225	43,500	76,250	43,500
	Unlisted investments		358,523	358,523	358,523	358,523
						
			435,748	402,023	434,773	402,023
	Listed investments carrying amount		77,225	43,500	76,250	43,500
19	Creditors: amounts falling due with	in one yea	ar Group	Group	Company	Company
			2021	2020	2021	2020
		Notes	£	3	£	£
	Obligations under finance leases	22	890,967	771,394	889,475	769,970
	Other borrowings	21	-	256,875	-	256,875
	Trade creditors		12,931,849	9,018,876	12,929,556	9,015,685
	Amounts owed to group undertakings		_	-	3,088,395	-
	Other taxation and social security		1,317,815	1,898,280	1,299,538	1,869,468
	Other creditors		280,525	56,211	278,758	53,715
	Accruals and deferred income		11,245,852	10,196,446	11,225,178	10,135,881
			26,667,008	22,198,082 ————	29,710,900 ————	22,101,594

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

20	Creditors: amounts falling due aft	er more tha	n one year			
			Group	Group	Company	Company
			2021	2020	2021	2020
		Notes	£	£	£	£
	Bank loans and overdrafts	21	-	1,988,718	-	· -
	Obligations under finance leases	22	575,563	474,852	570,467	468,264
			575,563	2,463,570	570,467	468,264
21	Loans and overdrafts					
			Group	Group	Company	Company
			2021	2020	2021	2020
			£	£	£	£
	Other loans		-	2,245,593	-	256,875
						
	Payable within one year		-	256,875	-	256,875
					=====	

The bank loan that existed as a creditor in the period to 30 August 2020 has been fully repaid during the period to 29 August 2021. The bank loan was fully secured against certain freehold investment properties which held a carrying value of £3,250,000 as at 30 August 2020.

The other loans, which were unsecured and repayable on demand, were also fully repaid during the period to 29 August 2021.

The overdraft facility is secured against certain land and buildings and there is a bond and floating charge in place over all assets of I. & H. Brown Limited.

22 Finance lease obligations

	Group 2021	Group 2020	Company 2021	Company 2020
	£	£	£	£
Future minimum lease payments due under finance leases:				
Within one year	890,967	771,394	889,475	769,970
In two to five years	575,563	474,852	570,467	468,264
	1,466,530	1,246,246	1,459,942	1,238,234
				====

The finance lease and hire purchase contracts at 29 August 2021 attract variable interest which is payable separately on the balance of capital outstanding. As such, the amounts payable at 29 August 2021 do not include a liability for finance charges.

The finance lease and hire purchase contracts are secured over the assets to which they relate.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

23	Provisions for liabilities					
			Group 2021	Group 2020	Company 2021	Company 2020
		Notes	£	£	£	£
	Restoration and aftercare provisions		1,057,773	1,009,018	1,057,773	1,009,018
	Deferred tax liabilities	24	1,030,006	428,350	1,029,471	398,530
	•		2,087,779	1,437,368	2,087,244	1,407,548
	•		=======================================			

Movements on the restoration and aftercare provisions:

Group and company	£
At 31 August 2020	1,009,018
Unwinding of landfill restoration and aftercare provision	(42,535)
Reinstatement of landfill restoration and aftercare provision	91,290
At 29 August 2021	1,057,773

The landfill provision covers the ongoing costs of restoration and aftercare of a landfill site that requires to be maintained until 2046. The wind farm provision covers the projected cost of dismantling the turbine and making good the site upon de-commissioning of the turbine in 2037.

24 Deferred taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and company, and movements thereon:

	Liabilities 2021	Liabilities 2020
Group	£	£
Accelerated capital allowances	1,145,308	699,880
Tax losses	(98,420)	(241,611)
Chargeable gains and revaluations	<u>-</u> 2	28,296
Short term timing differences	(16,882)	(58,215)
,	1,030,006	428,350

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 each

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

24	Deferred taxation				(Continued)
				Liabilities 2021	Liabilities 2020
	Company			£	£
	Accelerated capital allowances			1,144,773	698,356
	Tax losses			(98,420)	(241,611)
	Short term timing differences			(16,882)	(58,215)
				1,029,471	398,530
				Group 2021	Company 2021
	Movements in the period:			£	£
	Liability at 31 August 2020			428,350	398,530
	Charge to profit or loss			601,656	630,941
	Liability at 29 August 2021			1,030,006	1,029,471
25	Retirement benefit schemes				
				Group	Group
				2021	2020
	Defined contribution schemes			£	£
	Charge to profit or loss in respect of defined control	ribution scheme	es	374,839	315,957
	The group operates two defined contribution p schemes are held separately from those of the contributions outstanding as at 29 August 202 £46,652).	group in inde	pendently adm	inistered funds.	. The unpaid
26	Share capital				
		Company 2021	Company 2020	Company 2021	Company 2020
	Ordinary share capital	Number	Number	£	£ .
	Oraniary Strate Capital	Humber	Hallinel	-	~

72,200

72,200

72,200

72,200

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

27 Reserves

Share premium account

This account records the amount above the nominal value received for shares sold. less transaction costs.

Non-distributable reserve

This reserve records the market value revaluations over cost of certain tangible fixed assets and investments.

Capital redemption reserve

This reserve records the nominal value of shares repurchased by the company.

Profit and loss reserves

These reserves include all current and prior year retained profits or losses.

28 Financial commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities

At the period end, the company's bankers provided, with recourse to the company, guarantees under performance bonds amounting to £60,000 (30 August 2020 – £60,000).

At the period end, the company's insurers provided, with recourse to the company, guarantees under performance bonds amounting to £6,365,543 (30 August 2020 - £8,385,310).

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

29 Operating lease commitments

Lessee

At the reporting end date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

Land and Buildings	Group 2021	Group 2020
	£	£
Within one year	67,855	73,453
Between two and five years	108,500	160,855
In over five years	-	15,500
	176,355	249,808
Plant and machinery	Group 2021	Group 2020
	2021 £	2020 £
Within one year	7,009	17,994
Between two and five years	· <u>-</u>	5,412
In over five years	-	-
	7,009	23,406
	=====	

Lessor

At the reporting end date the group had contracted with tenants for the following minimum lease payments:

Land and buildings	Group 2021 £	Group 2020 £
Within one year	818,573	1,063,540
Between two and five years	1,373,484	1,901,758
In over five years	1,736,953	1,985,912
	3,929,010	4,951,210

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

30 Capital commitments

Amounts contracted for but not provided in the financial statements:

	Group 2021 £	Group 2020 £	Company 2021 £	Company 2020 £
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets	622,221	<u>-</u>	622,221	-

31 Contingent asset

The group made a claim against their insurance for the additional cost of working related to the Covid-19 pandemic. The insurers have accepted liability however the timing and quantum of the claim is uncertain, and thus it is most appropriately disclosed as a contingent asset.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

32 Related party transactions

During the period the group supplied goods to Ian Brown and Sons, a business connected to D H Brown and R M Brown by virtue of a close family relationship, worth £7,165 (30 August 2020 - £9,048). At the period end, an amount of £12 (30 August 2020 - £8,897) was due from Ian Brown and Sons. During the period Ian Brown and Sons made sales to the group of £583 (30 August 2020 - £6,738).

During the period the group supplied goods to Fordoun Estates Limited, a company under common control, of £7,536 (30 August 2020 - £13,838). At the period end, an amount of £2,236 (30 August 2020 - £9,313) was due from Fordoun Estates Limited.

During the period the company supplied goods to a director of £677 (30 August 2020 - £nil).

During the period £86,441 (30 August 2020 - £86,441) of rental payments were made to the directors' FURBS trusts.

At the period end £nil (30 August 2020 - £256,875) was due in respect of loans received from certain directors of the company and a non-director shareholder. The loans were unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

During the period, dividends paid in respect of directors were £396,445 (30 August 2020 - £nil). At the period end, dividends approved but not yet paid in respect of directors were £158,578 (30 August 2020 - £nil).

Key management personnel are considered to be the members of the Board, who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the group. The national insurance contributions paid on behalf of directors, in addition to their remuneration disclosed in note 7, was £119,081 (30 August 2020 - £85,832).

33 Controlling party

In the opinion of the directors no individual stakeholder has outright control of the company.

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 29 AUGUST 2021

34	Cash generated from group operations			
	3 1 1		2021	2020
			£	£
	Profit for the period		2,505,522	1,647,257
	Adjustments for:			
	Taxation charged		813,428	675,381
	Finance costs		101,218	142,596
	Investment income		(2,404)	(3,600)
	Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets		(124,701)	(364,591)
	Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets		1,404,668	1,407,288
	Gain on sale of investments			(189,462)
	Other gains and losses		(55,723)	(29,750)
	Increase/(decrease) in provisions		48,755	(121,844)
	Movements in working capital:			
	(Increase)/decrease in stocks		(838,817)	3,176,467
	(Increase)/decrease in debtors		(1,242,771)	458,055
	Increase in creditors		4,606,228	711,364
	Cash generated from operations		7,215,403	7,509,161
35	Analysis of changes in net funds - group			
		31 August 2020	Cash flows	29 August 2021
		£	£	£
	Cash at bank and in hand	4,131,346	3,477,466	7,608,812
	Borrowings including overdrafts	(2,245,593)	2,245,593	-
	Obligations under finance leases	(1,246,246)	(220,284)	(1,466,530)
		639,507	5,502,775	6,142,282
				